
CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 7:00P.M.  

Forthosewishing tolisten livetothemeeting, pleasegotoci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for
themeeting link. Contact thecityat952.960.7900during regular business hourswithquestions.  

AGENDA

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING

A. PledgeofAllegiance

B. RollCall
MayorLabadie___  

Siakel___  
Johnson___  

Callies___  
Gorham___  

C. ReviewandAdoptAgenda

Attachments

2. CONSENT AGENDA TheConsentAgendaisaseriesofactionswhicharebeingconsideredforadoptionthisevening
underasinglemotion.  Theseitemshavebeenreviewedbycitycouncilandcitystaffandthereshallbenofurtherdiscussionbythe
counciltonightontheConsentAgendaitems.   Anycouncilmemberormemberofcitystaffmayrequestthatanitemberemovedfrom
theConsentAgendaforseparateconsiderationordiscussion.  Ifthereareanybriefconcernsorquestionsbycouncil, wecananswer
thosenow.  

Motion toapprove itemsontheConsent Agenda & AdoptResolutions Therein:  

A. CityCouncil WorkSession Minutes ofAugust22, 2022 Minutes

B. CityCouncil Regular Meeting Minutes ofAugust22, 2022 Minutes

C. CityCouncil Special WorkSession MinutesofAugust29, 2022 Minutes

D. CityCouncil Special WorkSession Minutes ofSeptember 6, 2022 Minutes

E. CityCouncilSpecial WorkSession MinutesofSeptember 7, 2022 Minutes

F. Approval oftheVerifiedClaimsList ClaimsList

G. Accept QuoteandAwardContract forOneReplacement Director ofPublicWorksMemo
2,000GallonTankerTruck

H. SetTruth-in-Taxation Meeting Date Finance Director Memo
Resolution 22-080

I. Approving anEncroachment Agreement for23100Summit Ave CityEngineer Memo
Resolution 22-081



CITYCOUNCILREGULARMEETINGAGENDA
Page2

J. Accept Final Improvements forShady IslandBridge CityEngineer Memo
Forcemain Replacement, CityProject21-02 Resolution 22-082

K. Accept Final Improvements forChristmas LakeBoatLanding, CityEngineer Memo
CityProject22-02 Resolution 22-083

L. Approve HiringofLightEquipment Operator, PublicWorks Director ofPublicWorksMemo

M. Approve 2023LakeMinnetonka CableCommunications Budget CityAdministrator Memo
Resolution 22-084

N. Accept Resignation ofChrisPounder, LightEquipment Director ofPublicWorksMemo
Operator, PublicWorks

O. Approve HiringofLightEquipment Operator, PublicWorks Director ofPublicWorksMemo

P. Revised Interim Ordinance (Moratorium) onSaleof CityAttorney Memo
Cannabinoids Ordinance 592

Resolution 22-085

Q. Authorize Expenditure forPublicWorksEquipment, Director ofPublicWorks Memo
OnePowerBroomforSkidSteer

R. Accept Regular Appointment ofBruceStarkto Director ofPublicWorksMemo
LightEquipment Operator – Utilities, PublicWorks

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR Thisisanopportunityformembersofthepublictobringanitem, whichisnoton
tonight'sagenda, totheattentionofthemayorandcouncil. Whenyouarerecognized, pleaseraiseyourhandorusetheraiseyour
handfeature.  Pleaseidentifyyourselfbyyourfirstandlastnameandyouraddressfortherecord.  Afterthisintroduction, pleaselimit
yourcommentstothreeminutes.  Noactionwillbetakenbythecouncilonthismatter. Themayororcouncilmayrequestthatstaff
placethismatteronafutureagendaoraskstafftoaddressitduringItem10. StaffReports. (NoCouncil Actionwillbetaken)  

4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

5.  PUBLIC HEARING

6. PARKS

7. PLANNING

8. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

A. Approve PlansandSpecifications andAuthorize Advertisement for CityEngineer Memo
BidsforStrawberry LaneReconstruction, CityProject19-05 Resolution 22-086

9. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Tobacco License Violations CityClerk/HRDirector Memo



CITYCOUNCILREGULARMEETINGAGENDA
Page3

B. Approve 2023Preliminary Budget andLevy Finance Director Memo
Resolution 22-087

C. Accept Resignation ofDirector ofPublicWorksLarryBrown CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
AndDiscuss Recruitment Process

10. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

B. MayorandCityCouncil

11. CLOSED SESSION

ALEXANDELENA UGORETS V. CITYOFSHOREWOOD, CIV. NO. 21-1446 (D. MINN)   

ALAN YELSEY V. CITYOFSHOREWOOD, OAH5-0305-38230 (OFFICE OFADMINISTRATIVE
HEARINGS)   

PursuanttoMinn. Stat. §13D.05, subd. 3 (b), themeetingwillbeclosedforaconfidential, attorney-  
clientprivilegeddiscussionofthelitigationmatters, AlexandElenaUgoretsv. CityofShorewood, Civ.  
No. 21-1446 (D. Minn.), andAlanYelseyv. CityofShorewood, OAH, 5-305-38230.    

12.    ADJOURN



2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, AUGUST 22, 2022 6:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat6:03P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Johnson (arrived at6:32p.m.), Gorham, and
Callies; CityAttorney Shepherd; InterimCityAdministrator Shukle ; CityClerk/HR
Director Thone; Finance Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling; Director of
PublicWorks Brown; and, CityEngineer Budde

Absent: Councilmember Siakel

B. Review Agenda

Callies moved, Gorham seconded, approving theagenda aspresented. Motion passed 3/0.   

2. 2023 PROPOSED BUDGET

Finance DirectorRigdon gaveanoverview oftheproposed 2023budgetandproperty taxlevy.   
Henoted thatbudget worksheets had beendistributed tothedepartment heads andstaff is
working toputtogether thebudgetandproperty taxlevy.  Henotedthattheywerenotyetready
todiscuss theCapital Improvement Planandtonight’sdiscussion wouldbe strictlyaround
operations, inparticular, theGeneral Fund.  Hereiterated thatthebudget thatstaff isproposing
isjustpreliminary butshowsa6.1% increase inexpenditures.  Hereviewed thepersonnel-related
assumptions; notable General Fundbudget items; expenditures andtransfers out; revenues and
transfers in; andtheproposed property taxlevywhich isof8.9% higher thanin2022.   He
reminded theCouncil thatthetaxlevycanstillchangeuntil itisapproved andcertified tothe
County.  Hereviewed theincrease intaxable market valueandnotedthat itjumped about26%  
from2022.  Hegaveabriefexplanation ofthetaxcapacity ratewhichshows a28% increase
from2022to2023valuations.  Hestated thatbecause thereisanincrease invaluation, theCity’s
local taxcapacity ratehasdipped significantly byalmost16%, whichhehasneverseenbefore.   

Councilmember Gorham askedifFinance Director Rigdon hadseenanyhomevaluations remain
flat.   

Finance Director Rigdon notedthathehadnotandmostappeared tohaveincreased invalue
somewhere around15-20%, buthasalsoseensomeincrease over25%.  Hereviewed thetables
thatshowed examples ofavaluation situation withnochange; increase of15%;  increase of20%;  
orincrease of25% inproperty values.  Hestated thatiftheCouncil wanted tobringforward other
initiatives for2023, thetaxlevywouldneedtobeincreased whichwouldmeanalargertaximpact.    
Hereviewed theGeneral Fundbalance reserves whichhasbeenakeyfactor intheCity’sbond
ratingposition.  Heshared variousexamples thathehadsuggested foruseoftheGeneral Fund
surplus.  Hereviewed theAmerican Rescue PlanAct  (ARPA) fundsandnotedthattheCityhad



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 2of5

usedthese fundsfortheCovington Roadwatermain improvements, andthewater meter repair
andreplacement project.   Hereminded theCouncil thatthiswasapreliminary lookatthe
proposed budgetandoncetheproperty taxlevyiscertified itcannot beincreased, butcanbe
decreased.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thattheCityisnowlevying directly tothefundsrather than
transferring out, andaskedhowthiswouldaffect thehomeowner.  Sheaskediftheirstatements
wouldoutline specific amounts thatwent towards sewerorroads.    

Finance Director Rigdon stated thatontheirstatement, theywillbecombined andtheonlytwo
categories theywillseeontheirtaxbillwouldbeforthegeneral levyandadebt levy.  Heexplained
thatlevyingdirectly tothefunds ismoreofaninternal actionbytheCity.   

Mayor Labadie notedthattherecent bidtheCitygotbackfortreetrimming wasexorbitant tothe
pointwhere theycouldbringonadditional staffandstillbeunder theproposed bid.  Sheaskedif
theCouncil wouldwant toentertain theideaof “beefing up” PublicWorkswithequipment orman-  
power, andifso, whenthebesttimetodothatwouldbe.     

Finance Director Rigdon stated thattheanswer wouldreallyberelated tolevelofservice andthe
quantity ofservice thattheCitywants toprovide.      

Councilmember Calliesstated thatshethinksMayorLabadie’sideaisgood, butifastaffperson
isadded, shewasnotsuretheywouldactually beabletogooutanddoallthetreetrimming, or
example, because thatseemstobemorespecialized andmayhavetobedonebyanoutside
entity.    

PublicWorks Director Brownexplained thattherewould needtobeaminimum oftwopeople, if
theywerefocusing justontreetrimming.  Hestated thathehashadaconversation withInterim
CityAdministrator Shukle about thisissueandtheyhaveproposed inthebudget theaddition of
oneemployee thatwasfocused onparks.  Hestated thatthebidthatMayorLabadie referenced
cameinforaround $400,000, whichequates toaround fouremployees.  Hestated thatiftheCity
startedupatrueforestry effort, thatcouldnotjustbedonebyjustoneperson.    

MayorLabadie askedifthatwassomething thatcouldbealongtermrolewiththeCityhadjust
fallenabitbehind inthetreetrimming.   

Public WorksDirector Brownstated thatthetreecanopy hasgotten tothepointwhere theycan
start trimming andbythetimetheyarethrough, itisalmost timetostart theprocess alloveragain.    

MayorLabadie asked ifothercitiesofsimilarsizehavepersonnel serving inthiskindofrole.    

PublicWorksDirector Brownstatedthathethinks thatthelargersuburbs havetrueforestry
divisions, butwouldhavetotakeacloser lookatcities thatweresimilar insizetoShorewood.    

Interim CityAdministrator Shuklestated thattheCityhasnothiredanewPublicWorksemployee
inmanyyears.   

PublicWorksDirector Brownexplained thatwhenhestarted attheCity therewereeight full-time
employees plusaworking foreman.  HenotedthatatthattimetheCitycontracted outtheir



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 3of5

sanitary sewerandstormsewer toaprivateentity.   Hestated thattheynowhaveaddedstreets
andvarious rolesandalsohandle sanitary sewer andwaterduties andresponsibilities.    

InterimCityAdministrator Shukle askedhowlongagotheCityhired newemployees.Public
WorksDirector Brownstated thatitwouldprobably beabout twentyorsoyearsago.    

Interim CityAdministrator Shukle explained thattheywereproposing anewemployee for2023
which, tohim, isnotoutoftheordinary.  Hestated thattheCouncil could certainly lookatadding
more, butwouldcaution themtobecarefulwithhowthisisdone.    

MayorLabadie stated thattheoneadditional employee proposed isthebareminimum and
reiterated herquestion ofwhether ornotnowistheappropriate timetodiscuss thisorifitshould
bedoneasdiscussion forafuturebudget year.  Shenotedthatshethinks theentireCouncilwas
blownaway” bythebidthatcameinforthetreetrimming.     

Councilmember Calliesagreed butnotedthatitiskindofanunusual timeandshewasunsure if
thetreetrimming expense wouldcomeinashighnextyear.   

Councilmember Gorham stated that hethinks itwasjustbadtimingwiththetreetrimmers’ busiest
timeoftheyear.  Hestated thathedidnotthinktheCityshould overreact toomuch tothetree
trimming quotation.   Heexplained thathethinks itisagreat idea, butwouldbetakingonalong
termcommitment.  Hestated thatthathelovestheideaofpayingdowntheCity’sdebt.  Henoted
thatheisabitworried aboutescalation intheconstruction industry rightnowandtherearebunch
ofbigprojects goingoutwhichmakes himnervous because nextyeartheremaybesome
shocking numbers inthematerials world.  Heexplained thatwaswhyheisnervous aboutmaking
atenortwentyyearcommitment whentheCitydoesnotknowwhattheywillseenextyear.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatthereisonenewLightEquipment Operator included inthe
2023budget. Sheexplained thatshetrusted thatPublicWorksDirector Brownhaslookedat
where theyposition needstofocusandthatshedidnotthinktheCouncil should focussolelyon
thetreetrimming.    

MayorLabadie explained thatshewasusingthetreetrimming situation asmoreofanexample
because shethinks thePublicWorksDepartment isoverworked rightnow.  Shesuggested that
theCouncil consider thistopicasfoodforthought forfuturebudget years.    

Councilmember Callies askediftheARPA fundscouldbeusedfortreetrimming.    

Finance Director Rigdon stated thattheycouldnotbeusedforrecurring operational itemslike
treetrimming.    

Councilmember Callies suggested thatperhaps therewouldbesomesortofemergency orurgent
category where thosefunds couldbeusedeventhough theycouldnotbeusedforallthetreesin
theCityasgeneralmaintenance.    

Councilmember Gorham notedthatthereisnourgency toearmark theARPAfundsuntil2024.    

Councilmember Callies notedthatintermsofthereserves, thesuggestion thatappealed themost
toherwasexercising thecallontheEDAbondsandpayingdownthedebt.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 4of5

Councilmember Johnson arrivedatthemeeting.    

MayorLabadie askedifFinance Director Rigdonhadreceived alotofcallsfromresidents about
theirproperty taxstatements andvaluations.    

Finance Director Rigdon stated thattheCity’sfrontofficegotalotofcallsthatthey, inturn,  
referred totheCounty.  

Councilmember Gorham askedabout theassumptions hehadincluded forthingssuchasthe
pestmanagement planandaskedifthatwasincluded onafutureagenda fordiscussion.   

Finance Director Rigdon stated thattheCouncil candiscuss itrightnowiftheylike.    

PublicWorksDirectorBrownstated that theinitialbudget submittal wasputtogether withthe
assumption thattherewouldbe $45,000extra thatwasneeded forthepractice ofthepest
management planandusedifferent compounds versusthechemicals theCityhadbeenusing.   
Hestated thathehadheard thatthecompounds weresignificantly moreexpensive soheput
together essentially an ‘uneducated’ estimate basedonwhatheknewatthetime.  Hestatedthat
thespecialist whohasprepared theplanhaspriced itoutforthecompounds being $100,000/year
anddoesnotinclude thecontractual costs forthelicensed applicator.  Hestated thatinaddition
tothat, thereisalsoanother $45,000worthofadditional equipment needed forfieldmaintenance.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatthereisalsothecostoftheconsultant inaddition totheproduct
andequipment expenses.    

Planning Director Darling explained thatthecostfortheconsultant depends onwhat levelof
service theCityrequests.  Shestated thatthecostfortheproducts wouldvarybetween $45,000
and $80,000depending onhowmuchoftheparks theywanttousetheseproducts on.   

Councilmember Calliesstated thatshefeelsthisisadifficult thingtobudget forbecause the
Council hasnotyetmadeadecision about theplan.  Shestated thatshethinks itbrings into
question thelarger issueoftheCity’spolicyandstated thatshewould liketorevisit itand
suggested thatitmaybeagoodtopic fordiscussion attheCouncil retreat.   

PublicWorksDirector Brownnotedthatthereisnothing thatsaystheCityneeds tostartoutin
fullforcerightinyearoneforthepestmanagement planandcouldbesomething thattheCity
grows into.  Hestated thatthere istheconcern thattheturfisnotbeingmanaged properly
because theyhavesuspended allapplications ofchemicals, soitwilltakelonger toaddress the
weedgrowth thatisoutthere.      

Councilmember Gorham asked ifFinance Director Rigdon needed direction fromtheCouncil on
theuseofGeneral Fundreserves.   

Finance Director Rigdon stated thatitwouldbeadvisable iftheCouncil couldstart thinking about
that issue.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thatbothheandCouncilmember Callies supported payingdown
thedebtandaskedwhattheothers thought.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 5of5

Councilmember Johnson stated thatbecause interest ratesaregoingup, hewouldconcurwith
thatsuggestion.    

MayorLabadie stated thatshecouldnotspeak forCouncilmember Siakel, butshewouldalso
support thisapproach tothereserves.      

Finance Director Rigdon stated thathewillplantobringthisbacktotheCouncil foractionattheir
September 12, 2022Council meeting.  

Councilmember Calliesnotedthatitwasclearhowmuchworkhadbeenputintothisproposed
budgetandexpressed herappreciation foritbeingsoclearbecause ithelpstheCouncil make
decisions.      

3. ADJOURN

Gorham moved, Callies seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting of
August 22, 2022, at6:44P.M.  All infavor, motion passed 4/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2B

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, AUGUST 22, 2022 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Johnson, Gorham, andCallies; CityAttorney
Shepherd; Interim CityAdministrator Shukle; CityClerk/HRDirector Thone;  
Finance Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling; Director ofPublic Works
Brown; and, CityEngineer Budde

Absent: Councilmember Siakel

B. Review Agenda

MayorLabadie stated thatshewould liketoremove agenda item2.iandplaceitonafuture
meeting agenda.    

Johnson moved, Gorham seconded, approving theagenda asamended.  All infavor,  
motion passed.   

2. CONSENT AGENDA

MayorLabadie reviewed theitemsontheConsent Agenda.   

Gorham moved, Johnson seconded, Approving theMotions Contained ontheConsent
Agenda and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofAugust 8, 2022

B. Approval ofthe Verified Claims List

C. Accept Quote for2022 Catch Basin and Culvert Project, City Project 22-04,  
Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-073, “AResolution Awarding the2022 Catch
Basin and Culvert Repair Contract, City Project 22-04.”  

D. Accept Final Improvements forBeverly Drive and Cajed Lane Drainage
Improvements, City Project 20-03, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-074, “A
Resolution Accepting Final Improvements for the Beverly Drive andCajed
Lane Drainage Improvements Project; City Project 20-03.”  

E. Accept Final Improvements forGlen Road/Amlee Road/Manitou Lane Street
Reconstruction and Utility Project, City Project 18-08, Adopting
RESOLUTION NO. 22-075, “ AResolution forAcceptance ofFinal



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 2of14

Improvements for theGlen Road, Manitou Lane, and Amlee Road Street
Improvements, City Project 18-08.”  

F. Approve Vacation ofaPortion ofFire Lane 1toSet Property Line, Location:   
4580 Enchanted Point atFire Lane 1, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-068, “A
Resolution Vacating aPortion ofFire Lane 1toIdentify theSouth Property
Line of4580 Enchanted Point.”  

G. Approve Agreement with Christmas Lake Association for Improvements to
theChristmas Lake Public Access, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-076, “A
Resolution Approving Agreement Between theChristmas Lake Association
and City ofShorewood for Improvements totheChristmas Lake Boat
Access.”  

H. Accept Quote forSecurity Upgrades totheChristmas Lake Public Access,  
Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-077, “AResolution Awarding theQuote for
Security Improvements totheChristmas Lake Public Boat Access.”  

I. Accept Quote andAward Contract forOne Replacement 2000 Gallon Tanker
Truck – (removed from theagenda)  

All infavor, motion passed.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

GuySanschagrin, 27725 IslandViewRoad, notedthathewanted toaddress theCouncil
regarding theBirchBluffprojectandthehiringofanewCityAdministrator.  Henoted thathehas
spentthelasttwoweekends walking theBirchBluffareawithRickMann, wholivesinthe
neighborhood, andthefeedback theyhavegotten frompeoplewasoverwhelmingly against the
project asplanned.  Henotedthatnobody theyhadspoken tounderstood whatwasdrivingthe
project.  Heshared someofthecomments theyreceived fromthearearesidents andshowed
pictures ofthecondition ofBirchBluff thathadanoverlaydoneafewyearsago.  Heexpressed
confusion thatmoneywasspentonanoverlay iftheplansweretoripuptheroadafewyears
laterbecause anoverlay should lastseventotenyears.  Hestated thatafrequent sentiment from
residents wasthat theywanted theCitytodomuchmorewithpreserving healthy/mature trees,  
theywanted theirvoices tobeheard, andwanted theCitytostopwasting thetaxpayers money.   
Hestated thatwithregard tothehiringofanewCityAdministrator, hefeltthat residents should
beviewedasbothshareholders andrecipients ofCityservices andthat thisposition iscritical to
theCity’ssuccess.  Heexplained thathefeltresidents shouldhaveastrongvoiceinthehiring
process andoutlined whathefeltwhatqualities wereneeded inthisposition.  Hestated thathe
wasproposing thatanatlarge, citizensadvisory groupbeformed toguidethisprocess andnoted
thathewouldvolunteer toserveonthisgroup.    

KathyBongard, 2626BirchBluffRoad, stated thatsheisoneoftheresidents wholovethearea
asitisrightnowwiththecanopyoftrees.  Sheexplained thatherunderstanding isthattheCity
wants towidentheroadandstripe it.  

Mayor Labadie notedthattheCitywasstill indiscussion about theprojectandhadnotyetfinalized
theplans.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 3of14

Ms. Bongard stated thatafewyearsago, theneighborhood hadaskedforasigntobeputupon
thefirelaneaccess stating therulesoftheaccess.  Shestatedthattheyhavespentagreatdeal
oftimewiththeCouncil tryingtogetthatdoneanditstillhasnothappened.  Shestatedthather
understanding isthatworktosettle thefirelaneissuehasbeengoingonforovertwentyyears
andyetitseemsasthough theCouncil hastakenalmostnotimeatalltomakeplans, withthe
peoplewholivethere, regarding whatwillhappen onBirchBluffRoad.  Shestated thatthepeople
whobought therelikedhowitlooked, thesmall townfeel, andhoweasyitistowalktherewithout
beingdisturbed. Shereiterated thatitislovely, asitis, butshegetsthefeeling thattheCouncil
doesnotseemtocare.      

4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

A. Highway 7Safety Audit Presentation, MnDOT

Andrew Lutaya, AreaEngineer, MnDOTMetroDistrict, introduced himself andDerekLeuer, State
TrafficSafetyEngineer atMnDOT.  Henotedthat thispresentation willbemorefocused onhow
theroadsafetyauditwascarriedoutandwillreview theirrecommendations.  Henoted thatthere
aremuchbroader discussions onhowprojects areselected and fundedatMnDOT whichwill
continue beyond theroadsafety auditandexplained thattherearealotofneeds throughout the
Stateand notenough funding foreveryone.  Hestated thatthegoalofthesafetyauditwas, at
minimum, totrytoidentify iftherewasanylocation thatcouldriseinpriority tobeincluded inan
already published Stateplan.   Henotedthattheylookedatseventy intersections intheentire
corridor andexplained thataspublicstewards theyneedtoworkonprioritizing whichprojects are
abletobeworked onandwhentheycanbeworked on.  Heexplained thatduringaRoadSafety
Audit (RSA) theteamlooksforpotential safetyhazards thatmayaffect theroadusersandthen
suggests measures tomitigate those issues.  Hereviewed thegoaloftheRSAthatlooks into
education, enforcement, engineering, andemergency/trauma services.  Hegaveanoverview of
howtheHighway7corridor wassegmented aspartofthestudy.  Hereviewed datafromtheRSA
withregarding totraffic volumes, posted speeds, previous plans, previous studies, public
engagement andcomments fromthegeneral public.  Henotedthattherewasquiteabitofinterest
inthisstudyandtheyreceived overone-thousand responses fromtheiron-lineopenhouse.  He
gaveabriefoverview ofthegeneral themes expressed intheresponses related tonighttime
visibility andadesire toaddmoretrafficcontrol measures.      

Mr. Leuerexplained thathewasthetrafficmanager forthisprojectandshared details fromwhat
theyfound intheRSAandtheirrecommendations.  Henotedthathispresentation would focus
onthemiddle segment ofthecorridor intheCity.  Heexplained thattheyusedstatistical criteria
tofindwhether thenumberofcrashes wereaboveaverage orcritically aboveaverage, which
means thereappears tobesomething goingonherethatshouldbeinvestigated.  Hereviewed
thedatarelated tocrashes, crashseverity, mannerofcollision, andcausesoffatalandserious
injurycrashes.  Hestated thatonerecommendation theyhavewouldbetoinstall enforcement
confirmation lightstosafely observe andpursue redlightviolators aswellascreation ofaHighway
7Corridor Coalition.  Hegaveabriefoverview ofsomeoftherecommended short-term, medium- 
term, andlong-termimprovements fromMinnetrista toMinnetonka alongHighway 7.   He
reviewed theinput they gotfromthepublic regarding Highway 7, nearEureka Roadandwhat
their teamsettledonafter talking through somevarious solutions.  Heexplained thattheylanded
ontheideaofadivided two-laneroadway thathasa “suburban feel” toitwithpedestrian sidewalks
onbothsideswiththemajor intersection controls beingroundabouts.   Heclarified thatthisidea
hasnotbeenfullyvettedordesigned, butisanideaforastarting point.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 4of14

Councilmember Johnson askedifthethoughtwastohaveaconcrete median.  

Mr. Leuerexplained thattheideawouldbetohavearaised, flatmedian thatwoulddivide thetwo
waysoftraffic.    

Councilmember Johnson asked whatthiswouldmeanforpedestrians whowanttocrossover
Highway 7.   

Mr. Leuer stated thatitwouldallowpedestrians tocross tothemedian tothepointofsafety, and
thencrossthesecond half.  Henotedthattheirreportcontains dozensofrecommendations that
rangefromremoval ofvegetation thatmaybeinsightlinestothings likeinstalling cablebarriers,  
orfindingawaytoreduce thelefthand turnmaneuvers ontoHighway 7.    

Mr. Lutaya reiterated that theRSAisreally just thebeginning oftheprocess andthenextsteps
involve collaboration between various agencies to working togetthefunding formaking the
recommended improvements.    

MayorLabadie askediftherewasanestimated timeframeforsomeoftheimprovements and
askedwhenthesoonest actioncouldbetaken.    

Mr. Lutaya stated thatdepending ontheamountoffunding needed, someoftheshort-term
recommendations couldbedonenextspring, forexample clearing brushandtreesalongthe
corridor sight lines.  Heexplained that themedium-termandlong-termrecommendations will
requireabroader budget whichcantakealonger time.    

Councilmember Callies clarified thataHighway 7Coalition didnotalready existandtheywere
simply recommending thatonebeputtogether.    

Mr. Lutaya stated thatthiswascorrectandnotedthatacoalition typically beginswithagroup
suchasthis Council, thatinvitespartners fromothercitiesandcounties toworktogether on
solutions.   

MayorLabadie encouraged residents toutilize thecontact information forMr. LutayaandMr.  
Leuer iftheyhadspecific questions ontheRSA.  Sheextended herthanks forMnDOTandMr.  
LutayaandMr. Leuer forcoming togivethisreportandfortaking thistrafficstudyseriously.  She
stated thatshehopes thatwhenMr. Lutaya stated thatthiswasnottheendandonly thebeginning
thathewasspeaking thetruthbecause Shorewood needs helpwiththeHighway7corridor and
explained that thecommunity feelsitisaninherently dangerous pieceofhighway.  Sheexplained
thatshewasfearfulbecause ofMnDOT’slackofurgency andwouldliketheretobeaquicker
remedy.  Shenotedthatbeforeshewaselected asmayor, sheservedontheCityCouncil forsix
yearsandduringthat time, formerMayorZerbyrepeatedly asked MnDOT representatives and
legislators forhelpwiththeunsafe natureofHighway 7.  SheaskedwhattheCitycandotoget
helpfromMnDOT now, because theydonotwanttojustwaituntil thereisanother fatalcollision.   
ShenotedthatMnDOThadreceived overone-thousand responses totheironlinesurveyand
asked thattheyhearthemessage fromtheresidents thattheyfeelunsafeonHighway 7athigh
traffic times.  Shereiterated thattheCitywantshelpfromMnDOT anddoesnotwanttowait.  She
notedthatsheunderstands thattheyarehearing thesameconcerns fromothercommunities
alongtheHighway 7corridor, butthisCouncil isthestewards ofitsresidents andwouldaskthat
MnDOT change theirdecision andmakeShorewood anditscitizensapriority.  Shereiterated
thatcontact information fortheMnDOT representatives wasbeingshownonthescreenand



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 5of14

encouraged residents tocontact themwiththeirquestions andfeedback.  SheassuredMr. Lutaya
thatshesincerely appreciated MNDOT staff forcoming topresent thisinformation totheCityand
notedthatshewasnottryingtoworkagainst them, butwanted tomakeitclear thatthepeopleof
Shorewood donotjustwanttobestatistics andwanttheirconcerns tobeheard.        

B. Chief ofPolice, Brian Tholen – 2023 Budget Presentation

ChiefofPoliceBrianTholen gaveabriefoverview ofthe2023proposed budget.  Henotedthat
sinceOctober of2020, therewere5overdose deathsduetoFentanyl ofindividuals between the
agesofeighteen tofifty-fourandcompared thattotherebeingonly twooverdose deaths inthe
SouthLakeMinnetonka community between 2013 -2019.  Hestated thattheoverdose medical
callshaveincreased bytwenty-fivepercentoverthelastfiveyearsandexplained thattheynow
carryNarcan whichcanreverse theeffectsofanarcotic onasystem.  Henotedthatsince2017,  
theyhavehadfourteen Narcan deployments thatheconsiders ‘saves’.   Hestated thatitishis
responsibility toinformtheCouncil andcitieswhere theyneedextrafunding andpersonnel.  He
explained thatoneofthesepersonnel needswastoaddadrugtaskforceofficer todirectly and
proactively takealookatthedrugproblem andgotothedealers, notnecessarily theusers.  He
stated thatthesecond partofthisneedisrelated totheCapital Improvement Plan (CIP).  He
notedthat theyhaveneverhadonebeforebecause theyhavesimply taken fromotheraccounts.   
Hestatedthathehasalsoincluded inhisbudget proposal abuilding maintenance schedule
because theycannot simply justdefermaintenance onthings liketherooforHVACsystem.  He
explained thatanother component ofhisproposed budget relates toofficerwellness andnoted
thattheyalready haveaveryrobustofficerwellness program.  Hestated thatcurrently theyneed
toseeatherapist everyyearbecause theydealwithalot, butnotedthathewould liketoexpand
theofficerwellness program thatwasstartedunder formerChiefMeehan toincludedebriefs and
critical incidents.  Heexplained thatalsoincluded inhisproposed budget istheuncontrollable
increases thateveryone hasseenandgaveexamples ofincreased fuelandsupply costsand
worker’scompensation insurance premiums.  Heexplained thatthedebtserviceoftheamount
duetotheShorewood Economic Development Authority topayoffthepolicesideofthebuilding
willhaveitslastpayment inOctober of2022whichmeans therewillbeunallocated fundswhich
iswhyhethinksthisisagoodyear toaddthedrugtaskforceposition thatheissuggesting.  He
explained thatasacomparison, asofJuly31, 2021, thereweretwo-thousand nine-hundred thirty- 
eightcalls forservice forShorewood andasofJuly31, 2022, therewere three-thousand, three- 
hundred fifty-twocallsforservice, which isanincrease offourteen percent.    

Councilmember Callies askedforanexplanation ofhiscomments related tounallocated funds.    

ChiefTholen explained thatin2016, formerChiefMeehan refinanced thebonds thatwerepaid
tobuildthebuilding.  Hestated thateveryyearthe Cityprovided acertain amount forthe
department topayoffthosebonds.  Hestated thatmanypeople weren’tawareofthis, sohewas
notsureiftheyhadworked thatintotheir2023budgetornotandreiterated that thelastpayment
willbeinOctober of2022.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshesupports theideaofadrugtaskforceandfeltthatwould
bringagoodbenefit tothecommunity.    

ChiefTholen stated thatbyaddingadrugtaskforceofficer itisessentially aforcemultiplier
because itwillallowthemaccess tosixotheragencies.  Hethanked theCityfortheircontinued
supportofSLMPD andnotedthattheyarecurrently fullystaffed.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 6of14

C. Fire Chief, Curt Mackey – 2023 Budget Presentation

Mayor Labadie notedthatFireChiefMackey hadbeencalledoutonamutualaidcall.   

Councilmember Johnson asked thateveryone stopandpauseandtakeamoment tothinkabout
thesafetyofthose involved inthiscall.  HenotedthatbeforeChiefMackey hadtoleavehehad
senthimamessage askinghimtosummarize theproposed 2023budget.  Heexplained thathe
wastheliaisontotheExcelsior FireDistrict BoardandnotedthatInterim CityAdministrator Shukle
attends theOperating Committee meetings fortheExcelsior FireDistrictBoard.  Hegaveabrief
overview ofthebudgetandnotedthat theproposed budget increase toShorewood isproposed
tobe $25,393, which isaroundafivepercent increase fromprevious years.  Hegaveanoverview
ofsomeofthepressures within theDistrict, suchaskeeping theirwagescompetitive and
explained thatthisbudget brings thosemoreinlinewithotherwages inthearea.  Hegavean
overview ofsomeoftheCIPexpenses including thenewfireboat.  HenotedthatasPoliceChief
Tholen brieflymentioned, thefireportionofthebuilding willbefullpaidoffayearafterthepolice
portionofthebuilding in2023.    

MayorLabadie explained theCityhasaJointPowers Agreement andshares thefiredepartment
withfiveothercitiesandapolicedepartment withfourothercities.  Sheexplained thateachcity
hadacouncilmember thatservesontheFireDistrict Board andeachmayor servesonthepolice
board.    

Councilmember Johnson explained thatthedifference isthatDeephaven hastheirownpolice
department, butnottheirownfiredepartment.    

5. PUBLIC HEARING

A. Request forRezoning, PUD concept/development stage and Preliminary Plat for
Maple Shores
Location:  20430 Radisson Road and Adjacent Vacant Lots
Applicant:  Chamberlain Capital, LLC

Planning Director Darlingstated thatthisisanapplication byChamberlain Capital, LLCforthe
property at20430Radisson Roadwhere theypropose todevelop sevenhomes inaplanned
community withshared maintenance tobecalledMapleShores.  Sheexplained thatthePlanning
Commission hadheldapublichearing onAugust2, 2022wheresix people spokeandthe
Commission votedunanimously torecommend approval.  Shenotedthatoneadditional letter
wassubmitted byScottSmithonbehalfofhisclients, whoareresidents ofRadisson Road.  She
explained thatletterhadbeendistributed totheCityCouncil priortothemeetingandattheCouncil
daisandcanbeseenonthefront tableforpublic review.  Shestated thattheParksCommission
hadalsoreviewed theapplication andhadalsounanimously recommended approval ofaccepting
feesinlieuoflanddedication andkeeping theopenspaceunderprivate ownership.  Shenoted
thatrepresentatives ofthePlanning andParksCommission wouldpresent moredetailed
information about theirdiscussion laterintonight’smeeting.  Shestated thatthiswas apublic
hearing fortheCouncil toconsider additional public testimony andnotedthatactionwouldbe
takenunder item7B.    

MayorLabadie opened thepublichearing forcomment at8:07p.m.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 7of14

Michael Cohen, 20640Radisson Road, stated thathisproperty touches thesubject property.  He
notedthathewouldliketoknowtheactualacreage, perhome, fortheresidences theyare
proposing.  Hestated thathehadasked thisatthePlanning Commission butdidnotreceive an
answer.  Hestated thattheyareproposing seven beautiful homes,butwould liketoknowwhat
theacreage plotisandhaveitontherecord.    Hestated thathewouldalsoliketoknowabout
theeighteen-footwallwith thefenceontopand, ontheoverlay oftheaerialphotograph, how
closetohisproperty thathugewallwillbe.      

MayorLabadie suggested thattheapplicant answer thosequestions forMr. Cohen.    

ScottSmith, stated thathehadauthored theletter referenced byPlanning Director Darling.  He
stated thathestandsbythecomments included intheletterandjustwanted theCouncil toknow
thathewasheretonight iftheyhadanyquestions fromtheletter.    

PaulCameron, explained thatheandhiswifeareownersofChamberlain Capital, LLC, andnoted
thatifthisisapproved, theywillbecome residents oftheCitybecause theyplantoliveinthis
development.  Hestated thatfortheacreage perhousequestion raisedbyMr. Cohen .5acres
perhouse excluding wetlands andthelake.  Henotedthathewasnotsureabout thedistance
fromMr. Cohen’sproperty totheretaining wallandfencing because thatwasn’tsomething that
theCityhadrequired, buthecanfindthisinformation andpassitalong.    

MayorLabadie notedthatMr. CohenhadaskedifMr. Cameron couldpointoutonthemapthe
planned location oftheretaining wallandfence.    

Mr. Cameron explained thatitishardtoseeontheaerialphotos because therearenoreferences
tothehigh-watermarkandthesetback required bytheMinnehaha Watershed District.  Hestated
thathecanhave theirengineer doaCADmeasurement forMr. Cohenande-mail thisinformation
tohim.  Henotedthatthehighest pointoftheretaining wall iseighteen feetbutnoted thatittapers
downonthesidestozeroinanattempt toblendthegrades.   

Therebeingnoadditional publiccomments, Mayor Labadie closed thepublichearingat8:16p.m.  

MayorLabadie notedthatfurtherCouncil discussion wouldhappen laterontheagenda.   

6. PARKS

A. Report byCommissioner Heinz onAugust 16, 2022 Park Commission Meeting

ParksCommissioner Heinzgaveanoverview ofthesummer parks toursbytheParks
Commission.    

MayorLabadie notedthat ifanyone seesvandalism occurring atanyoftheparksshewould
encourage themtocall911..    

7. PLANNING

A. Report byCommissioner Riedel onAugust 2, 2022 Meeting

Planning Commissioner Riedel gaveanoverview onthediscussion and actions takenatthe
August 2, 2022meeting andgaveabriefsummary oftheirrecommendations.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 8of14

B. Request forRezoning, PUD concept/development stage and Preliminary Plat for
Maple Shores
Location:  20430 Radisson Road and Adjacent Vacant Lots
Applicant:  Chamberlain Capital, LLC

MayorLabadie notedthatapublichearing washeldregarding thisdevelopment onAugust2,  
2002atthePlanning Commission meeting andearlier thiseveningattheCouncil meeting.    

Councilmember Callies notedthatshelivesacross thestreetfromthisdevelopment andhasno
financial interest inthisproject.  Sheexplained thatshehasaneasement onLot #11, however
thereisdifferent language ontheeasement thanwhattheproposed development easement is.   
Shestated thatshewouldliketohaveCityAttorney Shepherd address theissueofwhatthe
Council islookingatintermsofthePUDapproval andrezoning, thefactors thataretaken into
consideration, andwhether ornottheeasement isanissuethatcomes intoplaywithin theCity
Code.    

CityAttorney Shepherd stated that theeasement isnotafactor inthissituation.  Hestated that
heunderstands thatthereisadispute about theeasement, butthatisaprivate easement andis
something thatisforthecourtsandnotforthisCouncil todecide.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshethinks thateveryone intheneighborhood would prefer that
thereonlybeonehouseonthislot, butthinks theyalsounderstand thatisprobably notarealistic
expectation.  Shestated thatshefeelsthatstaffhasthoroughly reviewed andaddressed someof
thepotential issues withtheproposal.  Shenotedthatcurrently thisproperty isanuisance
property andhasbeenvacant forthelastthreeyears, sosheislooking forward tosomething nice
going intherethatcouldpotentially beanasset totheneighborhood.  Sheadmitted thatitwillbe
abigchange andhaving additional trafficonanarrow roadisaconcernbut explained thatshe
wasinsupportofwhathasbeenproposed, withthestaff recommendations aspresented that
shouldmitigate someoftheconcerns.   

Councilmember Gorham stated thathealsofeelslikethisisaniceproject andhefelt, evenbefore
CityAttorney Shepherd hadweighed in, thattheLot #11dispute wasnotfortheCouncil todecide.   
Hestated thatheseesthisproposal hasabenefit totheCitywithaPUDrather thanjusthaving
fivelotswithhouses squeezed in.  Henotedthathefeltthewayithasbeendesigned withsome
buffers tothenorthandwestwillhelpmitigatesomeoftheenvironmental impacts.    

Councilmember Callies notedthat thisplanisforatotalofsevenhomes, withsixtownhomes and
oneindividual familyhome.   Shestated thatshebelieves oneoftheearlierproposals wasfora
totalofninehomessothisisaslight reduction fromthoseplans.    

MayorLabadie stated thatshelikens theLot #11dispute asasimilardiscussion tothatofHighway
7thatwasheldearlier tonight.  Shestated thattheCityhasnojurisdiction ofthatroadandlikewise
theyhavenojurisdiction overtheLot #11issue.  Shestated thatitdoesappear tobeadecent
development onaparcel thatiscurrently almostaneyesore.    

Councilmember Johnson asked about themention inthestaff reportofanHOA.  Hestated that
thesiteplanhasastormwater pond, butnowhere inthefunction oftheHOAdoesitdiscuss
maintenance ofthestormwater pond.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 9of14

Planning Director Darling explained thatitwouldbetheintentoftheCitythattheHOAtakeon
theresponsibility forthestormwater pond.  Shenotedthataseparate maintenance agreement
willberequired andasked that theHOAdocuments, whentheyaresubmitted withthefinalplat
include language forallofthecommon items, including maintenance ofthestormwater pond.    

Councilmember Callies askedabout thesequence ofapprovals inthisprocess.    

Planning Director Darling stated that iftheCouncil approves thisitemtonight, itwouldbeforthe
rezoning andtheconcept PUD, plusthedevelopment stagePUDandaPreliminary Plat.  She
explained thatthiscombines bothapolicydecision oflooking attherezoning plusthebeginning
detailofthedevelopment itself.  Shestated thatthenextstagewouldbethePUDFinalStage
planandFinalPlatwhichwould include thefinaldetailsofthedevelopment basedontheirdesign
oftheprojectandtheconditions thatwereputintotheresolution.  Shenotedthat iftheCouncil
approves theFinalPUDPlanandtheFinalPlat, thentheapplicant willberequired toassemble
allofthepermits fromtheotherpermitting jurisdictions whichwould include things likethe
watershed, DNR, andtheDepartment ofHealth .   

Callies moved, Johnson seconded Approving Ordinance No. 591, “AnOrdinance
Amending Section 1201.09Subd. 2oftheShorewood Zoning Code – The Shorewood
Zoning Map (Maples Shores PUD).” All infavor, motion passed.   

Johnson moved, Gorham seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 22-079, “AResolution
Approving aPreliminary Plat forMaple Shores forProperty Located at20430 Radisson
Road andFour Adjacent Vacant Properties.” All infavor, motion passed.   

C. Cooperative Housing Development
Applicant:  Lifestyle Communities
Location:  24250 and 24320 Smithtown Road

Planning Director Darling explained thatbothShorewood andTonkaBayhavebeenapproached
byacompany todevelopacooperative apartment building onproperties thatstraddle thecity
boundaries.  Shenotedthatbothcitieswillneedtobeinvolved inthedevelopment, butthelevel
ofinvolvement isapolicydecision tobemadebyeachcouncil.  Sheclarified thattheapplicant
hasnotyetsubmitted anapplication fordevelopment, butintheevent thattheydo, staffwould
likemore information anddirection onhowtheCouncilwould liketoapproach thisdevelopment
withTonkaBay.  Shestated thatstaffhasputtogether threeoptions forconsideration bythe
Council andnotedthatTonkaBaystaffwillbringthesesameoptions totheircouncil aswell.  She
reviewed thethreeoptions andexplained theiradvantages anddisadvantages:  Option1 –  
Boundary Alteration; Option2 – Delegation Authority; andOption3 – Separate Decision-Making.   
Shestated thatstaff isrecommending thattheCouncil adopteitherOption1orOption2.    

TimNichols, CEO, Lifestyle Communities, stated thattheyhaveabout fortycooperative
developments intheareawhichhavebeentremendously successful.  Hestated that theyhave
accomplished thisbypicking greatcommunities wherepeople wanttobeabletoageandremain
inthecommunity inthistypeofdevelopment.  Heexplained thattheyhavefound thatabout
eighty-fivepercentoftheirresidents arefromaveryclosegeographic rangeandnotfromoutside
thecommunity.  Hestated thatthisproject isdesigned forownership foractiveadults togivethem
the opportunity tostayintheircommunity.  Hestated thatheunderstands thatbecause this
straddles thetwocommunities itwillbeachallenge, butassured theCouncil that Lifestyle
Communities wasuptothechallenge.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 10of14

Mayor Labadie askediftheywerestillproposing tousethePublicWorksdriveway foroneoftheir
access points.   

Mr. Nichols stated thatgarage accesswouldbetothePublicWorks right-of-way.  Henotedthat
hehadbrieflydiscussed thisissuewithPoliceChiefTholen earlier thiseveningandhefeltcertain
thattheycanreachanoutcome thatallowspreservation oftraffic flowforemergencies togoout
whiledictating exactlywhere thecooperative owners access theirparking garage.  Hestated that
alltherestofthecommunity parking andvisitors willbethrough thecurrent access thatexiststo
thechocolate shop.  Heexplained thattheirconcept istohaveaseparate median thatseparates
thetwoaccesspointsandnotedthatwhenhementioned thattothePoliceChiefTholen, he
seemed optimistic thatthisapproach couldwork.    

MayorLabadie stated thatsheisalsoworriedabout theoneaccess pointontotheroadevenif
thereisparallel access because theywould stillbeexitingontoSmithtown Road.  

Mr. Nichols introduced DavidWilliams fromLifestyle Community Development andaskedhimto
address thattopic.    

DavidWilliams, Lifestyle Communities, stated thattheseconcerns havebeenbrought upbefore
andhavebeendiscussed withthePlanning Commission andtheCityCouncil.   Heexplained that
recently theyhaveengaged withatrafficengineer toworkthrough these issuesandknows that
theyhavebegunworking withPlanning Director Darling togetmoreclarityonthissituation.  He
stated thathisunderstanding isthattheywillbegin thetrafficstudy inthenextweekorsoinorder
tofigureoutthebestwaytoprovide access without limiting access foranyone.    

Councilmember Johnson askedPublicWorksDirector Browntoweigh inwithhisthoughts or
concerns about thisproject.    

CityAttorney Shepherd reiterated thatthequestion infrontoftheCouncil tonight istheprocess
bywhich thesequestions willgetanswered anddiscussed.  Hestated thatifitistheCouncil’s
prerogative, theycandiscuss thesethings, butreallywhattheyarebeingaskedfortonight is
whether ornotthisprojectwillgothrough twodifferent planning reviewprocesses orone.   

Councilmember Johnson stated thathe wouldstrongly preferOption1andseestheother two
options asquagmires.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatsheagreed andwould support Option1.  

MayorLabadie stated thatsheagreedaswell.   

Councilmember Gorham stated thatforOption2, hewouldwantShorewood’sPlanning
Commission tobethezoningandpermitting authority,butnotedthatOption1issomething that
theCityhasdonebeforeandseems likeitwouldbeagoodoption.   

MayorLabadie notedthatshewouldhaveareallyhardtimewiththedriveway andtheentrance
andexitonSmithtown.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 11of14

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thatthereisconsensus fromtheCouncil tosupport Option1and
explained thatstaffwillgobackandtalktoTonkaBayandtheapplicants about thesituation and
plantobringbackapotential wayforward foraproposed development.   

8. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

9. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Approve Proposed 2023 SLMPD Budget

TheCouncil discussed thebudget presentation andproposed increase.    

Labadie moved, Johnson seconded, Approving the2023 SLMPD Operating Budget, as
proposed.   All infavor, motion passed.   

B. Approve Proposed 2023 Excelsior Fire District Budget

Labadie moved, Gorham seconded, Approving the 2023 Excelsior Fire District Budget, as
proposed.  All infavor, motion passed.   

10. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Administrator andStaff

MayorLabadie notedthattheCouncil wasstartinganewprocedure andthatifanyoftheCouncil
orstaffwantedtoaddress issues thatwereraisedduringMatters fromtheFloor, thatthose
comments bemadeatthisportionofthemeeting.    

1. Primary Election and Candidate Filing Update
2. Fall Shred Event

MayorLabadie notedthattheFallShredEventwill takeplaceonOctober 22, 2022from9:00a.m.  
to12:00p.m. atBadger Park.  

Councilmember Johnson stated thathehasenjoyed participating inthisevent inthepastand
encouraged otherCouncilmembers tovolunteer tohelpservebutnotedthattheshredeventwill
fallonMinnesota Educators Association (MEA) weekend

Other

PublicWorksDirector Brown stated thathewaspleased toreport thatthenewshoptechnician
started today.   

CityEngineer Buddenotedthatithasbeenaquiet fewweekswithrelation toconstruction.   

Councilmember Johnson notedthat thequickness oftheconstruction atSmithtown Ponds with
removal ofthetrailandputting thetrailbackinplace, was impressive.  Henotedthatthereisone
section thatheisverycurious toseehowiteventually settles.  Hestated thatthecomments he
hasheard intheneighborhood havebeenextremely positive thusfar.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 12of14

Planning Director Darling stated thatSilverwood Parkisdowntopunch listitemsandencouraged
theCouncil tostopbytheparkandtakealookattheworkthathasbeendone.   Shestated that
regarding theitemsbrought upduringMatters fromtheFloor, therewasarequest thattherebe
asigninstalled displaying someofthefirelanerules.  Shestatedstaffcanmoveforward with
that, ifthatisCouncil’sdirection.   

Councilmember Johnson stated thatspecific tothatfirelanediscussion, hethought therehad
beensomekindofcompromise astovehicle useonthefirelaneandaskedifthathadstalledout.    

Planning Director Darlingexplained thattheitemwascontinued indefinitely, sounless theCouncil
brings itbackforreview, therewouldbenostaffactivity.    

MayorLabadie askediftheCityhadsignage atanyoftheother firelanes.   

Planning Director Darling stated that therewerenoother firelanesigns.  Shestated that ifthe
Council givesdirection forsignage atthisspecific firelane, herquestion wouldbewhether they
wantsignsatallthefirelanes.   

MayorLabadie stated thatshedoesn’tthinkthatissue isreadyforaCouncil decision tonight.   
Shesuggested thattheCouncil giveitsomethought andperhaps placeitonafutureagenda for
moredetailed discussion orforpossible inclusion onaPlanning Commission agenda.    

Councilmember Calliessuggested thatthismaybeagoodtopicofdiscussion fortheCouncil
retreat.    

Councilmember Johnson notedthattheyhavedone thatbeforeandtheproblem theykeep
running intoisthateverything works foreveryother firelaneintheCity, except thisone.    

InterimCityAdministrator Shukle explained thattheywillbegin interviewing candidates forthe
LightEquipment Operator position thisweek.  Hestatedhewould liketocomment onthe
comment made duringMatters fromtheFloorregarding thesearch forthe cityadministrator
position.  Hestated thatthesearch istypically handled bytheCityCouncil andwhencandidates
arebrought inpriortothefinal interviews, somecitieshavehadpublicopenhouses where they
canmeetthecandidates andgettoknowthem.  Hestated thatthishasbecomeatypicalpractice
andthinksBaker Tillymayalsoberecommending thatapproach.  

B. Mayor and City Council

Councilmember Callies asked fordetails related totheCity’sprosecutions.  Shestated thatshe
would liketoknowhowmanycases, trials, andpleasthereare.  Shestated thatshewouldbe
interested inreceiving thatinformation inorder tounderstand what ishappening withprosecutions.   
Shenotedthatthismaynotevenbeanything thathasbeenaskedforinthepast, butexplained
thatshethought itwouldbeuseful information fortheCouncil tohave.     

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thathewilltalktohisofficeandseeiftheycangetsomekindof
reportdelivered totheCouncil.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thathisrecollection wasthatpartoftheselection processwas
thatthenewprosecutor hasproposed coming andpresenting totheCouncil onaquarterly basis.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 13of14

MayorLabadie stated thatshewasn’tsuretheplanshadbeentopresent quarterly, butbelieves
thattheintentwasforittobedonemoreoftenthanithadbeeninthepast.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thattheParksCommission willbeconsidering thepest
management program soon.  Shestressed thatshedidnotwanttheCitytorushintoadecision
andsuggested thatitbebrought before theCouncil towards theendoftheyearorinearly2023
inordertogivethemtimetoreview thematerials.    

Planning Director Darling notedthatthenotifications havegoneoutabout theupcoming public
testimony process forthisitem.  Shenotedthatitisreally intended justtoexplain theprocess and
thinkspeople couldasktheconsultants somequestions iftheyhavethem.    

Councilmember Johnson askedPublicWorks DirectorBrown iftherewasawaytoadequately
treatathletic fieldsusingmaterials thatcause nopesticide harm.    

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thattheuseofpesticides clearlyviolated theBeeFriendly
resolution butnotedthathisexperience isverylimitedwithregard tothecompounds thatthe
Integrated PestManagement organization haveproposed.  Hestated thefeedback hehas
received isthattheywillwork,butaremore labor intensive.  Heexplained thatitwillalso take
special equipment tokeep thefields inworkingorderandtheCity’stolerance forweedswillhave
toincrease.    

Councilmember Callies reiterated thatshefeelsthiswhole issueneedstohaveacloser look,  
including takingalookatthepolicybefore theCityjustgoesdownthepathofimplementing this
pestmanagement plan.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thathewouldalsobeinterested indiscussing which areasofthe
Cityfitintowhichareaofthepolicy, soitisnotsimplya ‘onesizefitsall’ approach.     

Councilmember Callies stated thatshewouldalsolikeanupdateonthelitigation case.      

CityAttorney Shepherd stated thatitismoving alongthrough discovery andhaverecently had
expertdisclosures.  Hestated thathewillgetanupdate fromlitigation counsel andbringthat
information backtoaClosed Session meeting foranupdate.    

Councilmember Callies suggested thathecouldalsojustsendamemorandum withthatupdate
rather thanhaveaClosed Session meeting.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thatheandCouncilmember Callies attended anevent called
Fishing withFriendsatHowards PointMarina.  Hestated thatthisorganization doesfishing trips
andeducation forveterans, seniors, youth, andpeoplewithdisabilities.  Hestated thatitwasa
really lovelyevent foragreatcause.   

Councilmember Callies statedthatPlanning Director Darling andCommunications andRecycling
Coordinator Mooreweretherehelping outforthewholeevent.    

MayorLabadie stated thatsheattended theShining Stars luncheon eventwhereanyone inthe
community thatiseightyoroldergetsafreelunchwhichwasverywellattended.  Shestated that
shealsohadbreakfast lastweekwithRepresentative Dean Phillips whomeetsquarterly withthe



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 22, 2022
Page 14of14

mayors inhisdistrict.  Shestated thathesimplygavethemayors anupdateasheisabout to
headbacktoWashington D.C.     

11. ADJOURN

Johnson moved, Callies seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting ofAugust
22, 2022, at9:28P.M.  All infavor, motion passed.   

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2C

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, AUGUST 29, 2022 5:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat5:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers: Johnson, Siakel, Gorham, andCallies; Patty
Heminover, Baker/Tilly; andInterimCityAdministrator Shukle.  

Absent: None

B. Agenda

MayorLabadie explained thepurpose oftheworksession.  Theworksession is
intended toreviewtheapplications of15candidates fortheposition ofCity
Administrator.    

PattyHeminover, Baker/Tilly, thecity’sexecutive search consultant, reviewed the
application process.  Ms. Heminover indicated thatthere wereatotalof57
applications received.  Ofthe57, 6withdrew bringing thetotalnumber to51.   
BakerTilly thenproposed 15ofthe51tobebrought forward fortheCityCouncil to
review andconsider forinterviews.  Fromthe15, itishoped that5couldbe
considered semi-finalists tobebrought inforin-personand/orvirtual interviews.  

EachCouncilmember gavetheir top5picksforinterviews andthendecided by
consensus toonlyinterview 4candidates atthistime.  Thecandidates selected for
interviews wereCandidates #8, #10, #14and #15.  Theinterviews werescheduled
forTuesday, September 6, beginning at3p.m., atShorewood CityHall.  

2. ADJOURN

Johnson moved, Siakel seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting of
August 29, 2022, at6:23P.M.  Motion passed 5/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2D

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 3:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat3:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers: Johnson, Siakel, Gorham, andCallies; Patty
Heminover, Baker/Tilly; andInterimCityAdministrator Shukle.  

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

Callies moved, Gorham seconded, toapprove theagenda aspresented.  Motion passed
5/0.  

MayorLabadie explained thepurpose oftheworksession today istointerview 3
finalist candidates fortheposition ofCityAdministrator.  Thefollowing finalists for
thepositionareasfollows:  ScottWeske, RockySchneider, andWillieMorales.  It

thwasnotedthat the4 finalist, C. BlaineWingwillbeinterviewed viaZoomon
Wednesday, September 7, 10a.m.  Eachinterview wasestimated tobeonehour
inlength.  

InterimCityAdministrator Shukle askedquestions fromalistofagreed upon
questions asdeveloped byBaker/TillyandtheCityCouncil.  Mr. Weske’sinterview
beganatapproximately 3:10p.m. andconcluded at4:00p.m.  MayorLabadie then
recessed themeeting forafewminutes.  At4:13p.m., MayorLabadie re-opened
themeeting.  Thesecond finalist, RockySchneider, beganhisinterview at4:13
p.m. anditwasconcluded at5:17p.m.  MayorLabadie thenrecessed themeeting
at5:17p.m.  MayorLabadie thenre-opened themeeting at5:24p.m.  Thethird
finalist, WillieMorales, beganhisinterview at5:24p.m. andconcluded at6:30p.m.   
TheCityCouncil thendiscussed theinterviews andagreedtohave further
discussion following thefinal interview scheduled withC. Blaine Wing on
Wednesday, September 7.  

2. ADJOURN

Gorham moved, Johnson seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting of
September 6, 2022, at6:45P.M.  Motion passed 5/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2E

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 7, 2022 10:00A.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat10:22a.m..  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers: Siakel, Gorham, andCallies; PattyHeminover,  
Baker/Tilly; andInterimCityAdministrator Shukle.  

Absent: Councilmember Johnson

B. Review Agenda

Callies moved, Gorham seconded, toapprove theagenda aspresented.  Motion passed
5/0.  

MayorLabadie introduced herself andthe Councilmembers present toC. Blaine
Wing, afinalist fortheposition ofCityAdministrator.  MayorLabadie indicated that
Councilmember Johnson wasabsent. MayorLabadie indicated that Interim City
Administrator Shukle wasgoingtoaskquestions fromalistprepared byBaker/Tilly
andtheCityCouncil.  Mayor Labadie indicated thatMr. Wingisbeinginterviewed
viaZoom.  Mr. Wingbegan hisinterview at10:23a.m. andconcluded at11:29
a.m.    

Following theinterview, theCityCouncil beganadiscussion regarding thefour
finalists interviewed yesterday andtoday.  They requested thatPattyHeminover,  
Baker/Tillycontact Mr. Wingtoschedule anin-person interview forwhenhereturns
fromavacation thelastweek ofSeptember.  Theyalsodiscussed interviewing
another candidate fromthelistof15thatwerepresented attheAugust29, 2022
worksession.  Theytentatively scheduled aninterview withCandidate #3for5
p.m., Monday, September 12.  Ms. Heminover willconfirm thedateandtimewith
thecandidate andgetbacktoInterim CityAdministrator Shukle .  

Gorham moved, Siakel seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting of
September 7, 2022, at11:56a.m.  Motion passed 4/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk















































2H

MEETINGTYPE
REGULARCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   Setting theTruth-in-Taxation Public Meeting Date

Meeting Date:  September 12, 2022
Prepared by:  JoeRigdon, Finance Director
Reviewed by:  EdShukle, Interim CityAdministrator

Attachments:   Resolution:  Selection oftheTruth-in-Taxation PublicMeeting Date

Background:  Inthepast, theCityofShorewood hashelditsTruth-in-Taxation (TNT) meeting
onthefirstMonday inDecember.  For2022, theTNTmeetingwillbeheldaspartoftheCity
Council’sregular meeting.  TheTNTmeeting provides anopportunity forresidents andproperty
owners tocomment ontheproposed 2023property taxlevyandoperating budget.  Subsequent
totheTNTpublicmeeting, theCouncil willconsider approving afinal2023property taxlevyand
budget.  

Financial orBudget Considerations:  Thisprocessallows residents anopportunity toprovide
inputoraskquestions about thebudgetandproposed property taxlevy.  

Options:  Holding thepublicmeeting ismandatory, butthecouncil canchange thedateonthe
attached Resolution ifitwishes.  

Recommendation / Action Requested:  Staff recommends holding thepublicmeeting on
Monday, December 12, 2022, at7:00pmandpassing theResolution aspresented.  

Next Steps and Timeline:  Staffwillcommunicate thedateandtimeoftheTruth-in-Taxation
meeting toHennepin Countysoitcanbeincluded ontheTruth-in-Taxation notices mailed to
property owners.  

Connection toVision / Mission:  Thisprocess contributes tosound financial management
through public involvement intheprocess todetermine theproperty taxlevyandbudget forCity
services.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1



CITYOFSHOREWOOD

RESOLUTIONNO. 22-080

SELECTIONOFTHETRUTH-IN-TAXATIONPUBLICMEETINGDATE

WHEREAS, Minnesota State lawrequires localgovernments toholdpublicmeetings
ontheirproposed budgets andproperty taxlevies; and

WHEREAS, itisinthespiritoffullandopendisclosure oftheCity’sfinancial condition
toprovide asmuch information asnecessary fortheCityCouncil, residents, andproperty
owners toevaluate thebudget andproperty taxlevy;    

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITY
OFSHOREWOODASFOLLOWS:  

1. TheTruth-in-Taxation public meeting forproperty taxes levied in2022, collectible
in2023, issetforMonday, December 12, 2022at7:00pm.  

2. TheFinance Director ishereby instructed totransmit theTruth-in-Taxation meeting
dateinformation toHennepin County forinclusion ontheparcel specific notices to
bemailed inNovember.    

thADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODthis12 dayof
September, 2022.      

ATTEST:       JenniferLabadie, Mayor

SandieThone, CityClerk













CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-081

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGANENCROACHMENTAGREEMENTFORTHE
PROPERTYAT23100SUMMITAVENUE.   

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood isaMinnesota municipal corporation operating asa
statutory cityunder thelawsoftheStateofMinnesota; and

WHEREAS, theproperty owners located at23100 Summit Avenue described asLot
277ofAuditors Subdivision 135within theCityofShorewood; and

WHEREAS, theproperty abutsandsharesacommon property linewithSummit
Avenue, aplatted streetwithin theCity; and

WHEREAS, theproperty owner proposes toconstruct anonstructural boulder retaining
wallpartially within theproperty andpartially within therightofway, generally located on
thesouthsideoftheexisting driveway.  

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA ASFOLLOWS:  

1. Hereby approves theEncroachment Agreement withtheproperty ownerof
23100 Summit Avenue.    

2. Authorizes theMayor andCityAdministrator, onbehalfoftheCity, toenter into
theagreement andexecute anyother necessary documentation tovalidate the
agreement.  

Adopted bytheCityCouncil ofShorewood, Minnesota this12thdayofSeptember
2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk















CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-082

ARESOLUTIONACCEPTINGFINALIMPROVEMENTS
ANDAUTHORIZINGFINALPAYMENTFOR

THESHADYISLANDFORCEMAINPROJECT;   
CITYPROJECT21-02

thWHEREAS, onJuly12, 2021, theCityCouncil awarded thecontract fortheShady
Island Forcemain Project toMinger Construction Co.; and

WHEREAS, Minger Construction Co. hascompleted allworkinaccordance withthe
awarded contract; and

WHEREAS, Minger Construction Co. isrequesting finalpayment andacceptance ofthe
final improvements; and

WHEREAS, Staffhasreviewed theestimate, verified quantities, verified completed
punch lists, received allapplicable closeoutdocuments fromthecontractor, and
recommends finalpayment andacceptance oftheproject toMinger Construction Co.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED: theCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby accepts thefinalimprovements andauthorizes finalpayment toMinger
Construction Co., fortheShady Island Forcemain Project according totheplansand
specifications onfileintheofficeoftheCityClerk.  

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this12thdayof
September, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk





CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-083

ARESOLUTIONACCEPTINGFINALIMPROVEMENTSFORTHE
CHRISTMASLAKEBOATLANDINGPROJECT;   

CITYPROJECT22-05

thWHEREAS, onApril11, 2022, theCityCouncil awarded acontract toValley Paving
Inc. fortheChristmas LakeBoatLanding Project; and

WHEREAS, Valley Paving, Inc. hascompleted allworkinaccordance withtheawarded
contract; and

WHEREAS, Valley Paving, Inc. isrequesting finalacceptance forthework; and

thWHEREAS, theCityCouncil approved thefinalpayment fortheproject attheJuly25,  
2022CityCouncil Meeting; and

WHEREAS, Staffhasreviewed theproject andrecommends finalacceptance ofthe
project.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED: theCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby accepts final improvements fortheChristmas LakeBoatLanding Project
according totheplansandspecifications onfileintheofficeoftheCityClerk.  

thADOPTED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this12 dayof
September, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk







CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

2MTitle/Subject:  ResolutionApprovingLMCC2023Budget
Meeting Date: Monday, September 12, 2022 MEETING
Prepared by:  EdShukle, Interim CityAdministrator TYPE

RegularReviewed by:    
MeetingAttachments:  ResolutionandProposedBudget

PolicyConsideration:  Pursuant toMinnesota StateStatutes …  

Background:  Wehavereceived asubmittal oftheproposed 2023LakeMinnetonka
Cable Communications (LMCC) Budget (seeattached cover letterandbudget).  This
budget wasapproved attheAugust 11, 2022LMCC Board Meeting.  Unfortunately,  
Mayor Labadie, theCityofShorewood representative totheLMCC Board, wasunable
toattend theBoard meeting soShorewood wasnotinattendance atthemeeting to
review andconsider thebudget.  IwastoldthatnooneelsefromtheCitywouldhave
beeneligible tovoteonitanyway sinceMayor Labadie istheauthorized representative
toLMCC.   

LMCC Executive Director JimLundberg hasasked forapproval byeachofthecities
whoarepartofLMCC.  Theproposed budget appears tobeinlinewithpastyears’  
operations.  

FinancialConsiderations:  TheCityofShorewood budget includes itscontribution to
LMCC.  

ActionRequested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil approve the
proposed 2023LMCC Budget aspresented andattached.  

Motion, second and …(Simple Majority, Majority orTwo-Thirds) voterequired.    

ConnectiontoVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable tax
base, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.       

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1







STATEOFMINNESOTA
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
CITYOFSHOREWOOD

RESOLUTION22-084

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGTHEPROPOSED
2023LAKEMINNETONKACOMMUNICATIONSCOMMISSIONBUDGET

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood (“City”) isamember oftheLakeMinnetonka
Communications Commission (“LMCC”); and

WHEREAS, theJointPowers Agreement governing theLMCC requires thatanannual
budget beproposed andthatitshallbeadopted unless rejected byamajority of
members within
45days; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil hasreviewed theproposed 2023LMCC Budget.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVEDthattheCityCouncil approves the2023
LMCC budget.  

thADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODthis12 dayof
September, 2022.         

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

ATTEST:  

SandieThone, CityClerk











2P
MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   RevisedInterimOrdinance (Moratorium) onSaleofCannabinoids

MeetingDate:     September 12, 2022
Preparedby:    JaredShepherd, CityAttorney

Attachments:   Ordinance 592
Resolution forSummaryPublication

Background:    OnJuly25, 2022, theCityCounciladopted Ordinance No. 590, aninterimordinance,  
whichprohibited thesaleofTHCProductswithintheCityofShorewood.  Thatordinance asin
response torecent legislation thatallowed thesaleofproductswithHemp-derivedincertain
amounts.  

AsnotedattheJuly25CityCouncilmeeting, theimpetusbehindthemoratorium wastheneedto
betterunderstand thenewlegislation, itsspecific requirements, andthepotential impacts thereof.   
Thatincludesanevolving understanding ofwhattypeofproductsspecifically legalizedbythe
legislation. Ourofficehasbeenworkingtounderstand thescopeofpotential intoxicating andnon- 
intoxicating cannabinoids atissuenowandinthefuture.    

OurofficedraftedOrdinance No. 590withtheintenttoallowthesaleofcannabidiol (CBD) products
thatwerelegalandubiquitous priortothelegislation.  Thedefinition inOrdinance No. 590, however,  
inadvertently prohibitsCBDproducts.  Ordinance No. 592corrects thaterrorandprovidesanexpress
exemption forproducts thatcontainnon-intoxicating andnon-psychoactive cannabinoids, including
CBDandCBN, astheprimary ingredient andhavenomorethanatraceamountofCBD.  Trace
meaning, averysmallquantity, especially onetoosmall foraccuratemeasurements.  Thistermshows
upinthestateandinfederal regulations.   

Ordinance 592alsoprovidesanexemption formedicalmarijuana.  Additionally, duetosome
continued lackofclarityamongst thegeneralpublicandpotential businesses, theordinance prohibits
allotherintoxicating orpsychoactive cannabinoids, suchasHHC.    

Byitsterms, Ordinance592repealsandreplacesOrdinance 590.  

Recommended Action: Staffrecommends thattheCityCouncilapproveOrdinance 592, arevised
interimordinance, whichrepealsandreplacesOrdinance No. 590, andclarifies theexemption fornon- 
intoxicating, non-psychoactive cannabinoids.   

Adoptionoftheordinance requiresasimplemajorityofCouncilmembers.    

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.   

C:\\Users\\bpricco\\Desktop\\2Pmemo DOCS-#223308-v2-CAF_Memo_-_Ordinance_592.DOCX

223308v2



Staffalsorecommends theadoptionofaresolution approving summarypublication.  Approvalof
summarypublication requiresa4/5majority.  

Publication Notification: StaffpostedtheordinanceatCityHallandontheCity’swebsite.  
Additionally, Staffprovided theordinance tothelistofindividuals whohaverequested toreceive
noticeofpotential ordinances.  Staffwillattachanycorrespondence received todatetothis
memorandum.   

223308v2



Ordinance No. 592

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

ANINTERIM ORDINANCE PROHIBITING THESALE, TESTING,  
MANUFACTURING, ANDDISTRIBUTION OFINTOXICATING AND

PSYCHOACTIVE CANNABINOIDS

NOW, THEREFORE, theCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood doesordain:  

SECTION 1. REPEAL/REPLACE.   

Thisordinance repeals andreplaces Ordinance No. 590initsentirety.  

SECTION 2.  BACKGROUND.    

1.  By enacting 2022 Session LawChapter 98, Article 13, theMinnesota Legislature
amended Minn. Stat. §151.72andpermitted thesaleofedible andnonedible
cannabinoid products that contain Tetrahydrocannabinol, commonly known as THC

THCProducts”).   

2. Thenewlawdoesenact some requirements forlabeling andtesting, butthelaw
provides noparameters regulating production, compliance checks, orsalesofTHC
Products. Thenewlawdoesnotprohibit local regulation.   

3. Since theenactment ofthenewlaw, localgovernment andlawenforcement remain
concerned about legal status andclassification oftheproduction, sale, anduseofother
intoxicating andpsychoactive cannabinoids, suchasHHC, asprimary orsecondary
ingredients inedible andnonedible cannabinoid products (“ Intoxicating
Cannabinoids”).  

4. Pursuant toMinn. Stat. § 462.355, subd. 4, theCityisauthorized toenactbyordinance
amoratorium toregulate, restrict orprohibit anyusewithin thejurisdiction toprotect
thepublic health, safety, andwelfare. Specifically, the City isauthorized toenacta
moratorium ordinance toallow ittoundertake astudy todetermine whether toadopt
anyregulations orrestrictions, including siting andlocation ofuses, related tothesales,  
testing, manufacturing, anddistribution ofTHC Products and Intoxicating
Cannabinoids.  

5. Pursuant toitsgeneral police powers, including butnotlimited to, Minn.  
Stat. § 421.221, subd. 32, theCitymayenact andenforce regulations orrestrictions on
THCProducts andIntoxicating Cannabinoids within theCitytoprotect thepublic
safety, health, andwelfare, including restrictions andamoratorium ontheuseofsales,  
testing, manufacturing, anddistribution, during thependency ofastudy todetermine

223272v1



theneed forpolice power regulations, including butnotnecessarily limited tolicensing
andpermitting.  

SECTION 2. FINDINGS.  

1. The CityCouncil finds there isaneedtostudy THCProducts andIntoxicating
Cannabinoids anduses andbusinesses related thereto, inorder toassess thenecessity
forandefficacy ofregulation andrestrictions relating tothesales, testing,  
manufacturing, anddistribution ofTHCProducts, including through licensing or
zoning ordinances, inorder toprotect thepublic health, safety, andwelfares ofits
residents.  

2. Thestudywillallow theCityCouncil todetermine theappropriate changes, ifany, that
that itshould make toCityordinances.  

3. TheCityCouncil, therefore, finds thatthere isaneedtoadoptaCity-widemoratorium
ofthesale, testing, manufacturing, anddistribution ofTHCProducts andIntoxicating
Cannabinoids within theCitywhileCitystaff studies theissue.  

SECTION 3. MORATORIUM.    

1. Noindividual, establishment, organization, orbusiness maysell, test, manufacture, or
distribute THCProducts and Intoxicating Cannabinoids fortwelve (12) months from
theeffective dateofthisordinance.   

2. TheCityshallnotissueanylicense orpermit related toTHCProducts andIntoxicating
Cannabinoids for twelve (12) months from theeffective dateofthisordinance. No
license orpermit application, ofanykind, byanyindividual, establishment,  
organization, orbusinesses involved intheproposed sale, testing, manufacturing, or
distribution ofTHCProducts andIntoxicating Cannabinoids within theCityof
Shorewood shallbeaccepted orconsidered fortwelve (12) months fromtheeffective
dateofthisordinance.    

3. Planning orzoning applications related toTHC Products andIntoxicating
Cannabinoids orapplications fromindividuals, establishments, organizations, or
businesses involved intheproposed sale, testing, manufacturing, ordistribution of
THCProducts andIntoxicating Cannabinoids within theCityofShorewood shall not
beaccepted orconsidered fortwelve (12) months fromtheeffective dateofthis
ordinance.    

4. Exemptions:  

a. Thismoratorium doesnotapply totheselling, testing, manufacturing, or
distributing ofTHCProducts related totheMedical Cannabis Program as
administered bytheMinnesota Department ofHealth, provided thatsuch

223272v1



activity isdone inaccordance with theregulations andlawsofMinnesota
regarding Medical Cannabis.  

b. Thismoratorium doesnotapply totheselling, manufacturing, ordistribution of
products thatcontain non-intoxicating, non-psychoactive cannabinoids asthe
primary cannabinoid ingredient, suchCannabidiol (“ CBD”) orCannabinol

CBN”), andwhich havenomore than trace amounts ofTHC.  

SECTION 4. STUDY.  TheCityCouncil directs Citystaff tostudy theneed forlocal regulation
regarding thesale, testing, manufacturing, ordistribution ofTHCProducts andIntoxicating
Cannabinoids within theCityofShorewood. Staffmust alsostudy theneed forcreating or
amending zoning ordinances, licensing ordinances, oranyother ordinances toprotect thecitizens
ofShorewood fromanypotential negative impacts ofTHCProducts andIntoxicating
Cannabinoids. Upon completion ofthestudy, theCityCouncil, together withsuchcommission as
theCityCouncil deems appropriate or, asmayberequired bylaw, willconsider theadvisability
ofadopting newordinances oramending itscurrent ordinances.  

SECTION 5. ENFORCEMENT.   TheCitymay enforce thisOrdinance bymandamus,  
injunctive relief, orotherappropriate civil remedy inanycourtofcompetent jurisdiction. TheCity
Council hereby authorizes theCityAdministrator, inconsultation with theCityAttorney, toinitiate
anylegalaction deemed necessary tosecure compliance withthisOrdinance. Aviolation ofthis
Ordinance isalsosubject totheCity’sgeneral penalty inCityCode § 104.01.  

SECTION 6. TERM.  Unless earlier rescinded bytheCityCouncil, themoratorium established
under thisOrdinance shall remain ineffect until twelve (12) months fromitseffective date, at
which point, itwillautomatically expire.    

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shallbeinfull forceandeffect fromand
after itspassage bytheCityCouncil.    

thPassed this12 dayofSeptember, 2022.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

ATTEST

Sandie Thone, CityClerk

223272v1



RESOLUTION 22-  

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTION APPROVING ASUMMARY PUBLICATION OFINTERIM
ORDINANCE 590REGARDING APROHIBITION ONTHESALE, TESTING,  

MANUFACTURING, ANDDISTRIBUTION OFTHCPRODUCTS

WHEREAS, atadulycalledmeetingonJuly25, 2022, theCityCounciloftheCityof
ShorewoodadoptedOrdinanceNo. 592entitled "ANINTERIMORDINANCE
PROHIBITINGTHESALE, TESTING, MANUFACTURING, ANDDISTRIBUTIONOF
INTOXICATINGANDPHYCHOACTIVECANNABINOIDS" pertaining to passage of a
MinnesotaStatute §151.72; and

WHEREAS, theCityCounciladoptedalengthyinterimordinancetohaltsuchactivities
asallowedbyMinnesotaStatute412.221Subd. 32toallowtimeforstudytodetermine
theneedforpolicepowerregulations, includingbutnotnecessarilylimitedtolicensing
andpermitting; and

WHEREAS, thepurposeofthissummaryistoinformthepublicoftheintentandeffectof
theinterimordinancebutto publishonlyasummaryoftheordinancewiththefull
ordinancebeingonfileintheofficeoftheCityClerkduringregularofficehoursand
availableonthecity'swebsite.  

NOWTHEREFORE, ITISHEREBYRESOLVEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD:  

1. TheCityCouncilfindsthatthepublicationoftheabovetitleandSections3, 4, 6and7of
OrdinanceNo. 592clearlyinformsthepublicoftheintentandeffectoftheOrdinance.  

2. AfullcopyoftheOrdinanceisavailableatShorewoodCityHallandonthecity'swebsite.  

thADOPTED bytheShorewoodCityCouncilonthis12 dayofSeptember, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



RESOLUTION 22-085

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTION APPROVING ASUMMARY PUBLICATION OFINTERIM
ORDINANCE 590REGARDING APROHIBITION ONTHESALE, TESTING,  

MANUFACTURING, ANDDISTRIBUTION OFTHCPRODUCTS

WHEREAS, atadulycalledmeetingonJuly25, 2022, theCityCounciloftheCityof
ShorewoodadoptedOrdinanceNo. 592entitled "ANINTERIMORDINANCE
PROHIBITINGTHESALE, TESTING, MANUFACTURING, ANDDISTRIBUTIONOF
INTOXICATINGANDPHYCHOACTIVECANNABINOIDS" pertaining to passage of a
MinnesotaStatute §151.72; and

WHEREAS, theCityCounciladoptedalengthyinterimordinancetohaltsuchactivities
asallowedbyMinnesotaStatute412.221Subd. 32toallowtimeforstudytodetermine
theneedforpolicepowerregulations, includingbutnotnecessarilylimitedtolicensing
andpermitting; and

WHEREAS, thepurposeofthissummaryistoinformthepublicoftheintentandeffectof
theinterimordinancebuttopublishonlyasummaryoftheordinancewiththefull
ordinancebeingonfileintheofficeoftheCityClerkduringregularofficehoursand
availableonthecity'swebsite.  

NOWTHEREFORE, ITISHEREBYRESOLVEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD:  

1. TheCityCouncilfindsthatthepublicationoftheabovetitleandSections3, 4, 6and7of
OrdinanceNo. 592clearlyinformsthepublicoftheintentandeffectoftheOrdinance.  

2. AfullcopyoftheOrdinanceisavailableatShorewoodCityHallandonthecity'swebsite.  

thADOPTED bytheShorewoodCityCouncilonthis12 dayofSeptember, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk

















CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION22-086

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGTHEPLANSANDSPECIFICATIONSFORTHE
STRAWBERRYLANERECONSTRUCTIONPROJECTAND

AUTHORIZINGADVERTISEMENTFORBIDS
CITYPROJECT19-05

WHEREAS, onApril26, 2021, theCityCouncil authorized thepreparation ofPlans &  
Specifications fortheStrawberry LaneStreet andUtility Improvements project, including
watermain, CityProject 19-05; and

WHEREAS, theCitywillcontinue toacquire easements andrightofentryagreements
withproperty owners toaccommodate drainage, grading, staging, treeremoval,  
landscaping, andothermisc. impacts asneeded fortheproject; and

WHEREAS, theproject isincluded inthe2022Capital Improvements Planandwillfund
theproject through acombination ofStreet & UtilityBonds, WaterFunds, Sanitary
Funds, andtheStormwater Funds; and

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA ASFOLLOWS:  

1. TheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood hereby approves theFinalPlans &  
Specifications fortheStrawberry LaneReconstruction project andauthorizes
advertisement forbids.   

thADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this12 dayof
September, 2022.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item
9A

Title/Subject:    Tobacco License Violations
MEETINGTYPEMeeting Date:  Monday, September 12, 2022
RegularMeetingPrepared by:   Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector

Reviewed by:   JaredShepherd, CityAttorney

Policy Consideration:  Pursuant toShorewood CityCodeChapter 302SaleofTobacco,  
Section 302.03noperson shallselloroffertosellanytobacco, ortobacco-related device
without firsthaving obtained alicensetodosofromthecity.    

Background:  BakrAlkarkhi currently holdsalicense toselltobacco intheCityofShorewood
atCowboy Tobacco locatedat19905StateHighway 7.  TheCityofShorewood received
notification fromtheSouthLakePoliceDepartment thatfour (4) citations wereissued to
Cowboy Tobacco forselling tobacco ortobacco-related devices toaperson under21yearsof
age.  OnAugust18, 2022, Alkarkhi wassentaletterviacertified mailinforming himofthe
violations, hisright toahearing, andafineintheamount of $775.00tobepaidwithin15daysof
thedateoftheletter (seeattached).        

OnAugust26, 2022, Alkarkhi, paid thefineof $775.00anddidnotcontestorappeal the
violations.  Heinformed ushewasintheprocess ofsellinghisbusiness.     

Shorewood CityCode, Section 302.13Penalties, Subd. 1. Licensees.  Anylicensee foundto
haveviolated thischapter, shallbecharged anadministrative fine.  Inaddition, afterthethird
offense, thelicense shallbesuspended fornotlessthansevendays.    

Financial Considerations: Administrative finespaidintheamountof $775.00.    

Action Requested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil suspend Cowboy Tobacco’s
Tobacco License fortheperiodofseven (7) daysasrequired byShorewood CityCodefor
violation ofShorewood’sTobacco Code302selling toaperson under21yearsofage.      
Motion, second and simple majority vote required.    

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublicservices, a
sustainable taxbase, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership.       

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page 1



CITYOF
SHOREWOOD

5755Country ClubRoad Shorewood, Minnesota 55331
952.960.7900

www.ci.shorewood.mn.us cityhall@ci.shorewood.mn.us

August18, 2022

BakrAlkarkhi
Cowboy Tobacco
19905StateHighway 7
Shorewood, MN55331

RE: TOBACCO LICENSE VIOLATION
NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY AND POSSIBLE
SUSPENSION OFLICENSE

DearMr. Alkarkhi:  

TheCityofShorewood received notification fromtheSouthLakeMinnetonka PoliceDepartment thatfour
4) separate citations wereissued; twoonJune3, 2022 (Citation #27072022002976 and2702022002973)  

andtwoonJuly12, 2022 (Citation # 2702022003571 and2702022003570).  Allfour (4) citations were
issued toBakrAlkarkhi, theownerofCowboy Tobacco, forsellingtobacco ortobacco related devices toa
person under21yearsofage, MNStatute §609.685.1a(a).      

Pursuant toShorewood CityCodeChapter 104Administrative Enforcement ofCodeRegulations, please
consider thisyourAdministrative Notice forfourseparate codeoffenses pertaining totheSaleofTobacco
toaminor, Shorewood CityCodeChapter 302.  . Ifyou wish tocontest and appeal these violations,  
you must request anappeal toahearing officer inthis matter, inwriting, within ten (10) days.  

TheShorewood CityCodecallsfortobacco license violation administrative penalties asfollows:  

75/firstoffense in24-monthperiod
200/second offense in24-monthperiod
250/thirdoffense andeachthereafter in24-monthperiod

Four (4) Citations havebeenissued toCowboy Tobacco inthe24-monthperiod, andanadministrative
penaltyof $775isbeing imposed onCowboy Tobacco fortheviolations.  Absent anappeal, youmust
submit payment within fifteen (15) days.  Failure tosubmit payment within fifteen (15) daysmayresult
insuspension ofyourTobacco License.  Please feelfreetorefer toShorewood CityCodeChapter 302or
contact mewithanyquestions.    

Sincerely,  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk

cc: Shorewood CityCouncil, CityAdministrator, CityAttorney, SouthLakeMinnetonka PD



































































CITYOFSHOREWOOD

RESOLUTIONNO. 22-087

ADOPTINGTHEPRELIMINARY2023GENERALFUND
OPERATINGBUDGETANDPROPERTYTAXLEVY

WHEREAS, Citystaffhavepresented thepreliminary 2023budget andproperty tax
levyataworksession inAugust 2022; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil hasreviewed thebudget andproperty taxlevyand
made modifications toeachthatreflect desired community service levels; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil isrequired toapprove andcertify theproposed 2023
preliminary property taxlevytotheHennepin County Auditor bySeptember 30, 2022;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITY
OFSHOREWOODASFOLLOWS:  

1. The2023Preliminary General FundBudget ishereby setat $6,076,263.  

2. $ 6,510,948 istobelevied for2022 advalorem property taxes, collectible in
2023 uponalltaxable property intheCityofShorewood. Individual fund
property taxlevies areasfollows:  

General Fund       $ 5,364,018
DebtService Funds (City):  

2020AG.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds  $ 230,487
2021AG.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds  $ 312,806
2022AG.O. Street Reconstruction Bonds  $ 234,637

Capital Project Funds:  
Equipment Replacement    $ 123,000
Street Improvements    $ 123,000
ParkImprovements     $ 123,000

6,510,948

3. TheFinance Director ishereby instructed totransmit acertified copyofthis
resolution totheCounty AuditorofHennepin County, Minnesota.      

ADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODthis12thdayof
September, 2022.      



ATTEST:       JenniferLabadie, Mayor

SandieThone, CityClerk





timetodiscuss iftheCityCouncil wishes tomakeanyrevisions tothejobdescription or
would likeStaff toresearch comparable jobdescriptions fromothercitiesofsimilar size
toseeiftherewouldbeanything wewould liketoconsider changing within thejob
description, jobtitleorjobqualifications.  Staffwillattempt tobringthis information back
tothenextCityCouncil meeting onSeptember 26, 2022.  

ActionRequested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil accept the
resignation ofLarryBrown, effective December 28, 2022andprovide direction for
recruitment tofilltheposition.  Motion, secondandsimplemajorityvoterequired.    



September 6, 2022

EdShukle, InterimCityAdministrator
Mayor Jennifer Labadie

RE: LetterofResignation

DearEdandJennifer: 

Please accept thisletterasmyresignation fromtheCityofShorewood.  After27years, itistime
tomove intothenextchapter ofmylife.   

Ihavebeenveryhonored toserve themanyMayors, CityCouncilmembers, CityStaff, andthe
residents ofthecity, duringmytimehere.  Ihaveconsidered myposition agreatopportunity to
bepartofateamthatkeeps andmaintains thecityingoodworking order.    

Irealize thatthisnotice comesatatimewhere therearemany staffchanges taking place.   
Hence whyIamgiving thecityaprolonged notice, toensurethatthere isasmooth transition
andtransfer ofinformation forthenewDirector ofPublic Works.  Mylastdayofemployment
willbeDecember28, 2022.   

Thank youagain fortheopportunity tohaveserved theCityofShorewood.    

Sincerely,   

Larry Brown, PE
Director ofPublic Works



POSITIONTITLE:  DirectorofPublicWorks
DEPARTMENT:  PublicWorks
ACCOUNTABLETO: CityAdministrator
SUPERVISES:  CityEngineer, LightEquipmentOperator, Shop

Technician, UtilitiesLeadSupervisor, Utility
Operator, SeasonalPublicWorksEmployees

OBJECTIVE ANDSCOPE

Responsible forplanning, organizing, directing andcoordinating theconstruction, operation and
maintenance ofStreets, Parks, Water, Sanitary Sewer, andStorm Sewer facilities, including lift
stations, ponds, wells, andwater towers.  

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS OFTHEPOSITION

A. Serves asDirector ofPublic Works

1. Mustbeabletoworkcooperatively withothers, evenduring emergencies and
challenging situations, maintain apositive workattitude, andnotnegatively impact
themorale ofothers.  

2. Must maintain anattitude ofrespect andprofessionalism atalltimes.  

B. Oversees Streets andParks.  

1. Plans, directs, andoversees themaintenance ofmunicipal streets andparks
including scheduling ofpatching, snow andiceremoval, storm waterpipes,  
ditches, andwetland systems, andsweeping ofCitystreets andparking lots.  

2. Ensures proper andtimely maintenance oftraffic signal systems.  

3. Ensures proper maintenance andoperations ofallequipment andbuildings.  

C. Oversees Utility Divisions

January 2013 1



1. Coordinates andoversees theactivities oftheUtility division, including the
operation andmaintenance oftheCity’sdrinking water andsanitary sewer
systems, including water tower painting, replacement ofpumps, liftstation
systems, inflow/infiltration control anddatabase management.  

D. Budget andPlanning Responsibilities

1. Coordinates preparation ofthe5-yearCapital Improvement Program related to
utilities andequipment purchases.  

2.  Ensures approved equipment andutility projects intheCIPthatarecompleted on
timeandonbudget.  

3. Develops, administers, andmonitors theannual public works operating budgets.  

4. Prepares andimplements longrange plans fortheDepartment.  

5. Provides leadership inefforts tostreamline, improve, andseekcontinuous
improvements.  

E. Project andProgram Management

1. Coordinates Safety Programs including mandated OSHA training and
certification, equipment safety inspections, development anddocumentation of
department standard operating procedures, coordination ofmonthly department
safety program meetings, oversees department policies, procedures, andpractices
toensure safety andefficiency.  

2. Responsible formaintenance oftheCity’semergency preparedness
communications systems, including emergency generators, radios, alarms, and
outdoor warning sirens.  

3. Coordinates planning andresponse foremergency management forthe
Department andworks closely with theEmergency Management Director to
prepare andrespond toemergencies andcritical events.  

4. Monitors department operations toensure compliance withapplicable laws,  
regulations, rules, policies, andordinances.  

5. Consults withstaffonoperations todetermine work progress, changing priorities,  
problems, hazards, safety, andmaterials andequipment needs.  

6. Responsible formaintenance ofcomplete andaccurate department records.  

7. Receives, investigates, andresponds toresident concerns andcomplaints ina
timely manner.  

January 2013 2



F. Serve asCommittee Representative

1. Represents City inintergovernmental matters, including MnDOT, Hennepin
County, Metropolitan Council andother agencies ofLocal, State, County or
Federal government.  

2. Attends CityCouncil meetings andother meetings asrequested.  

G. Performs other duties asapparent orassigned

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES

Supervises employees intheDepartment either directly orthrough subordinate supervisors.   
Responsible fortheoverall direction, coordination, andevaluation ofthisunit.  Carries out
supervisory responsibilities inaccordance with theCity'spolicies andapplicable laws.  
Responsibilities include interviewing; training; planning, assigning, anddirecting work; evaluating
performance; rewarding; disciplining; suspending; transferring; adjusting grievances; addressing
complaints andresolving problems ofemployees.  Responsibilities also include theability to
effectively recommend: hiring, promoting, demoting, anddischarging ofemployees.  

EDUCATION and/orEXPERIENCE

Bachelor'sofScience (B.S.) Degree inCivil Engineering, seven yearsofprogressively
responsible related municipal experience and/ortraining; orequivalent combination ofeducation
andexperience.  

OTHER KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS ANDABILITIES

Ability toreadandinterpret documents suchassafety rules, operating andmaintenance
manuals, technical andprocedure manuals.   
Ability toprepare reports andcorrespondence.    
Ability togivepresentations before CityCouncil, other agencies, groups ofcustomers;  
andemployees.    
Ability tomaintain records, complete forms, andprepare reports.   
Ability tocreate andanalyze statistical data.    
Ability tocommunicate effectively withotherstaff, elected andappointed officials,  
consultants, regulatory agencies, contractors, media, andthegeneral public.     
Considerable ability todetermine short and long-termgoals andestablish procedures.  
Ability tomake arithmetic computations using whole numbers, fractions anddecimals.    
Ability tocompute rates, ratios andpercentages.    
Ability tocalculate volumes, grades, elevations, etc. forprojects.    
Ability tousescales toscale plans, maps, elevations, etc.  
General knowledge ofcomputer operations andsoftware programs, including Word and
Excel.  

January 2013 3



Knowledge ofmunicipal public works maintenance operations including streets, sewer
andparks maintenance, shop andequipment repairs.  
Ability tointerpret plans andspecifications forconstruction projects.  
General knowledge ofequipment andproducts utilized inDepartment.  
Knowledge ofMNDOT, State, County andlocal lawsandordinances.  
Knowledge ofOSHA rulesandregulations.  
Knowledge ofthe “Employee Right toKnow – Material Safety Data Sheets and
Information”.  
Knowledge ofGISmapping andengineering forconstruction projects.  
Ability tobeavailable evenings andweekends torespond toandassess off-hourwork
requirements ofdepartment, including weather related conditions.   

CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS

Valid Minnesota ClassDDrivers License orbecome solicensed within6months ofemployment.  

Incompliance with theAmerican With Disabilities Actthefollowing represents the
Physical andEnvironmental Demands: Theposition requires anequal amount oftimespent
standing, walking, andsitting.  Lifting, pushing/pulling, orcarrying objects weighing uptoten
10) pounds isregularly required, withamaximum ofonehundred (100) pounds occasionally

required.  Climbing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, twisting, andbending are
sometimes required.  Repetitive movements ofthehands aresometimes required. Audio, visual,  
andverbal functions areessential functions toperforming thisposition. Whileperforming the
dutiesofthis job, theemployee frequently works inoutdoor weather conditions.  Theemployee
occasionally works nearmoving mechanical parts; inhigh, precarious places; andisfrequently
exposed tofumes orairborne particles, toxicorcaustic chemicals, andriskofelectrical shock.  
Theemployee isoccasionally exposed towetand/orhumid conditions, extreme heat; and
vibration.  

January 2013 4


	Agenda
	2A Minutes 08-22-22 CC WS
	2B Minutes 08-22-22 CC Reg Mtg
	2C Minutes 08-29-22 CC WS
	2D 09-06-22 Minutes CC WS
	2E Minutes 09-07-22 CC WS
	2F Claims List
	2G Tanker Truck
	2H TNT Meeting Date
	2I Encroachment Agreement
	2J Shady Island Forcemain Project
	2K Christmas Lake Boat Landing
	2L LEO Appointment
	2M LMCC 2023 Budget
	2N LEO Resignation
	2O LEO Appointment
	2P Revised Ordinance
	2Q Power Broom for Skid Steer
	2R Regular Appointment to LEO - Utilities
	8A Strawberry Lane
	9A Tobacco License Violations
	9B 2023 Proposed Budget
	9C Director of Public Works Resignation

